
 

February 5, 2024 Town Council 
Meeting (Regular) Agenda 

February 05, 2024 at 6:30 PM 
City Hall – 700 B Street 

 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

IV. Reading and Approval of Minutes 

A. Minutes from Regular Meeting of January 8, 2024 

V. Treasurer’s Report 

A. Account Balances 

B. Approval of Expenditures 

VI. Delegations 

A. Robert Robson, Fire Chief 

VII. Mayor’s Comments 

A.  

B.  

C. A verbal proposal has been submitted to the City Clerk's office requesting the approval of a 
digital billboard to be placed at  299 W 6th St., Ceredo, WV. The location would be on the 
western part of the property near the railroad tracks.  

D. Representatives from Armstrong Utilities have requested the renewal of the non-exclusive 
franchisee agreement with the Town.   

VIII. Old Business 

A. Article 1711 - Official Building Code 

IX. New Business 

A. First reading of ordinance to create "Ceredo Planning Commission" 

B. Anthony Poston, Police Chief has requested funds to purchase a mobile radar bracket for the 
motor unit. 

C. The City Clerk has proposed to switch from the use of debit cards to a PCard program.  

X. Other Reports 

A. Police Report 

B. Maintenance Report 

XI. Adjournment 

1



Town of Ceredo 

Town Council 

Regular Session 

January 8th, 2024 

 

The Town of Ceredo Town Council met in regular session on Monday, January 8th, 2024 

at the Ceredo City Hall.  The Mayor, Paul A. Billups, called the meeting to order at 6:30 

p.m. Those present included the Mayor, Paul A. Billups, and Councilmen, Steve 

Diamond, Oscar Adkins, Joe Ratcliff, Ron Jarrell, and Robert Leslie.  

 

Reading and Approval of the Minutes 

The Mayor asked if Council had any additions or corrections to the minutes of the 

December 4th, 2023 Regular Session.  None being heard and on a motion by Steve 

Diamond and second by Ron Jarrell, Council voted to accept the December 4th, 2023 

Regular Session minutes as presented.  All were in favor, motion carried. 

 

Treasurer’s Report 

Treasurer, Robert Leslie, presented the financial report for December, 2023, and the 

Mayor thereafter asked if Council had any questions. None being heard, on a motion by 

Oscar Adkins and a second by Steve Diamond, Council voted to accept the Treasurer’s 

report for December, 2023 as presented.  All were in favor, motion carried. 

 

Delegations 

Carroll Browning, representing the Antique Automobile Club, requested a donation of 

$1,250 to assist with the 2024 Ceredo Antique Car Show. The event has been held in 

Ceredo for over twenty years, and historically draws a large crowd to the town. On 

motion by Joe Ratcliff with second by Oscar Adkins, the request was unanimously 

approved by council. 

 

Rusty Webb, Esq. appeared to precent council with the first of thirteen checks from the 

West Virginia First Foundation, being a distribution from the opioid litigation settlement. 

The first installment was $114,000. The Mayor and Council expressed appreciation to 

Mr. Webb for his representation of the Town in that litigation. 

 

Mayor’s Comments 

The Mayor informed Council that the town’s health insurance carrier, PEIA, has 

announced a 14% rate increase to become effective July 1, 2014. 

 

The Mayor advised Council that through an agreement with the Crescent Hill Cemetery 

Board a number of aged, distressed long-needle while Pine trees will be removed from 

the cemetery and replaced with a small vegetation in the Spring. In conjunction with that 

project, the trees along Route 60 East will be trimmed and dead trees removed. 

 

Distracted Driving Ordinance 

2

Section IV, Item A.



Second reading of an ordinance restricting distracted driving was held. On motion by 

Steve Diamond and second by Oscar Adkins, the ordinance was unanimously approved 

to become effective immediately. 

 

Air B&B Ordinance 
Second reading of an ordinance regulating B&B lodging businesses in town was held. 

After discussion, motion was made by Bob Leslie and seconded by Joe Ratcliff to 

approve the ordinance. Council voted unanimously, the ordinance was approved. 

 

Ordinance to Revise the Town Building Code 

A proposed ordinance to revise Article 1711, Ceredo Building Code, was presented for 

first reading. The revision is required to reference the most recent editions of the state 

building and fire codes that are referenced in the current ordinance. On motion by Ron 

Jarrell and second by Steve Diamond, council voted unanimously to approve the revision 

on first reading. 

 

Council Work Tablets 

Town Clerk Jacob Skeens made a presentation to Council concerning the purchase of 

Apple Work Tablets for each councilman. Skeens explained the benefits and savings of 

using electronic transmission for documents and notifications to and from council 

members. The devices will replace the monthly “Council Books” and provide instant 

access to archived material. On motion by Bob Leslie and second by Steve Diamond, the 

council voted unanimously to approve the purchase. 

 

Board Appointments 

The Mayor announced the following appointments: Floodwall Board – Oscar Adkins, 

Steve Diamond, and Bob Leslie. Sewer Board – Ron Jarrell, Joe Ratcliff, and Oscar 

Adkins. Water Board – Steve Diamond, Bob Leslie, and Ron Jarrell. 

 

 

Adjournment 

No further business was brought before the Council.  The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

      ________________________________________ 

      Paul A. Billups, Mayor 

 

 

      ________________________________________ 

      ATTEST: Jacob Skeens, Clerk 
 

3

Section IV, Item A.



 
TREASURER’S REPORT 

PERIOD: JANUARY 2024 
 
 

General Fund 

 Ending Balance $181,223 

 
Water Works – Combined 
 

 Ending Balance $120,715 

 
Sewer Fund – Combined 

 Ending Balance $309,249.07 

 
Coal Severance 

 Ending Balance $3,479.75 
         

Special Levy 

 Ending Balance $72,716 

 
Rainy Day Fund 

 Balance   $295,000 

4

Section V, Item A.



DATE VENDOR PAYMENT

1/19/2023 ZACHARY LACKEY $300.00

UNIFORM REIMBURSEMENT

1/19/2023 APPLE $295.74

COUNCIL IPAD INSURANCE COVERAGE

1/22/2023 BARE ARMS $250.00

POLICE TRAINING

1/24/2023 TODD DARST $450.00

CONTRACTED WORK

1/24/2024 MAYO FAMILY TREE SERVICE $6,000.00

TREE TRIMMING

1/24/2024 DELL MARKETING $910.19

UTILITY OFFICE COMPUTER PURCHASE

1/26/2024 HUNTINGTON GRAVEL & SAND $335.14

CRUSHER ROCK

1/26/2024 KENNY QUEEN ACE HARDWARE $233.67

MISC DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES

1/26/2024 KIM GRIZZLE $300.00

TOWN CLOCK CONTRACT

1/26/2024 POSTALIA TDA POSTAGE $1,000.00

POSTAGE PURCHASE

PAGE 1 OF 1

EXPENDITURE REPORT

TOWN COUNCIL

GENERAL FUND

JANUARY 2024

5

Section V, Item B.



DATE VENDOR PAYMENT

1/12/2024 RAILROAD MANAGEMENT COMPANY $637.48

ANNUAL PERMIT FEE

PAGE 1 OF 1

TOWN COUNCIL

EXPENDITURE REPORT

JANUARY 2024

WATER FUNDS

6

Section V, Item B.



DATE VENDOR PAYMENT

1/12/2024 FP FINANCE PROGRAM $295.40

POSTAGE MACHINE RENTAL 

1/12/2024 HUNTINGTON GRAVEL AND SAND $326.04

CRUSHER ROCK

1/12/2024 RAILROAD MANAGEMENT COMPANY $1,274.93

ANNUAL PERMIT FEE

1/26/2024 KAY CASTO $454.00

CONTRACT WORK

1/26/2024 SERVICE PUMP $4,856.90

PUMP REPAIR

PAGE 1 OF 1

TOWN COUNCIL

EXPENDITURE REPORT

JANUARY 2024

SEWER

7

Section V, Item B.



DATE VENDOR PAYMENT

1/2/2024 MAYO FAMILY TREE COMPANY $5,000.00

TREE TRIMMING

1/12/2024 PARIS SIGNS $1,713.67

MULTIPLE SIGNAGE THROUGHOUT TOWN

1/12/2024 STATE ELECTRIC $1,952.07

LIGHTING PROJECT

1/24/2024 MAYO FAMILY TREE COMPANY $6,000.00

TREE TRIMMING

PAGE 1 OF 1

TOWN COUNCIL

EXPENDITURE REPORT

JANUARY 2024

SPECIAL LEVY

8

Section V, Item B.



9

Section VII, Item D.



10

Section VII, Item D.



11

Section VII, Item D.



12

Section VII, Item D.



13

Section VII, Item D.



14

Section VII, Item D.



15

Section VII, Item D.



16

Section VII, Item D.



17

Section VII, Item D.



18

Section VII, Item D.



19

Section VII, Item D.



20

Section VII, Item D.



21

Section VII, Item D.



22

Section VII, Item D.



23

Section VII, Item D.



24

Section VII, Item D.



25

Section VII, Item D.



26

Section VII, Item D.



27

Section VII, Item D.



28

Section VII, Item D.



29

Section VII, Item D.



30

Section VII, Item D.



31

Section VII, Item D.



32

Section VII, Item D.



 

 
 

Page 1 of 4 

ARTICLE 1711 OFFICIAL BUILDING CODE1 

1711.01 ADOPTION. 

The Town of Ceredo hereby adopts the State Building Code, reflecting a filing date of May 5, 2022, as 
authorized by W.Va. Code § 8-12-13 and promulgated pursuant to W. Va. Code § 15A-11-5, and by the State of 
West Virginia in Title 87, Legislative Rule Series 4 (§ 87-4-1 et seq.), State Building Code, which are collectively 
adopted by reference as if fully restated herein, as the official building code for the town.  

The standards and requirements as set out and as published by the International Code Council. and American 
National Standards Institute, and the National Fire Protection Association as listed in this subsection, have the 
same force and effect as if set out verbatim in this ordinance. The specific editions include:  

(1) The 2018 edition, International Building Code with modifications set forth in W. Va. CSR § 87-4-4(4.1).  

(2) The 2018 edition of the International Plumbing Code.  

(3) The 2018 edition of the International Mechanical Code with modifications set forth in W. Va. CSR § 87-
4-4(4.1).  

(4) The 2018 edition of the International Fuel Gas Code with modifications set forth in W. Va. CSR § 87-4-
4(4.1).  

(5) The 2018 edition of the International Property Maintenance Code.  

(6) The 2015 edition of the International Energy Conservation Code for residential buildings with 
modifications set forth in W. Va. CSR § 87-4-4(4.1).  

(7) The ANSI/ASHRAE/IESNA Standard 90.1 2013 edition for commercial buildings.  

(8) The 2018 edition of the International Residential Code for One- and Two-Family Dwellings with 
modifications set forth in W. Va. CSR § 87-4-4(4.1).  

(9) The 2017 ICC/ANSI A117.1 American National Standards for Accessibility & Usable Buildings & Facilities.  

(10) The 2018 International Existing Building Code, with modifications set forth in W. Va. CSR § 87-4-4(4.1).  

(11) The 2020 edition of the National Electrical Code, NFPA 70, with modifications set forth in W. Va. CSR § 
87-4-4(4.1).  

(12) The 2018 edition of the International Swimming Pool and Spa Code.  

(13) Wherever referenced in the several ICC codes adopted in this section, any reference to the 
International Fire Code should be substituted with the NFPA Life Safety Code 2021 edition.  

(14) Whenever a certificate of occupancy is required of a commercial structure greater in size than 7,600 
feet, the project documents shall be designed by an Architect licensed by the WV Board of Architects, 
or a Professional Engineer licensed by the WV State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers.  

(b) The Town of Ceredo does not adopt any of the additional appendices authorized pursuant to the W. Va. 
Legislative Rule identified as § 87-4-1, et seq. and specifically authorized in § 87-4-7(7.3).  

(c) The Town of Ceredo does adopt the provisions of the national codes with respect to the penalty for 
imprisonment, but the penalty for any violation shall be limited to a maximum of $500 and/or 30 days 
imprisonment for any single violation.  

 

1State law reference(s)—Adoption by reference, W. Va. Code, § 8-11-4; building regulations, see W. Va. Code, § 8-
12-13; municipal inspection, W. Va. Code, § 8-12-15.  

33

Section VIII, Item A.



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-12-18 13:53:13 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 6) 

 
Page 2 of 4 

1711.02 COMPLIANCE. 

No person, firm, corporation or other entity shall fail, refuse or neglect to comply with the provisions of the 
Official Building Code of the town adopted by this article. The supervisor of building inspection shall have all those 
powers necessary to enforce the provisions of the Official Building Code of the town.  

1711.03 COPIES. 

One copy of the Official Building Code adopted by this article shall be kept on file in the office of the city clerk 
and the office of the division of building inspection and made available to the public for inspection and copying for 
a reasonable fee or charge.  

1711.05 PERMIT REQUIRED. 

Any owner or authorized agent who intends to construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, demolish, or change 
the occupancy of a building or structure, or to erect, install, enlarge, alter, repair, remove, convert or replace any 
electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing system, the installation of which is regulated by code, or to cause any such 
work to be done, shall first make application to the building official and obtain the required permit.  

1711.06 NON-CONTRACTOR WORK EXEMPT FROM PERMIT. 

Exemptions from permit requirements of this code shall not be deemed to grant authorization for any work 
to be done in any manner in violation of the provisions of this code or any other laws or ordinances of this 
jurisdiction. Permits shall not be required of non-contractors for the following:  

(a) Building. 

 (1) One story detached accessory structures used as tool and storage sheds, playhouses and similar 
uses, provided the floor area does not exceed 120 square feet.  

(2) Fences not over six feet high.  

(3) Oil derricks.  

(4) Retaining walls which are not over four feet in height measured from the bottom of the footing 
to the top of the wall, unless supporting a surcharge or impounding Class I, II or II-A liquids.  

(5) Water tanks supported directly on grade if the capacity does not exceed 5,000 gallons and the 
ratio of height to diameter or width does not exceed 2 to 1.  

(6) Sidewalks and driveways not more than 30 inches above grade and not over any basement or 
story below which is not part of an accessible route.  

(7) Painting, papering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar finish work.  

(8) Temporary motion picture, television and theater stage sets and scenery.  

(9) Prefabricated swimming pools accessory to a group R-3 occupancy, as applicable in section 101.2, 
which are less than 24 inches deep, do not exceed 5,000 gallons and are installed entirely above 
ground.  

(10) Shade cloth structures constructed for nursery or agricultural purposes and not including service 
systems.  

(11) Swings and other playground equipment accessory to detached one- and two-family dwellings.  

34

Section VIII, Item A.



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-12-18 13:53:13 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 6) 

 
Page 3 of 4 

(12) Window awnings supported by an exterior wall which do not project more than 54 inches from 
the exterior wall and do not require additional support of group R-3, as applicable in section 
101.2 and group U occupancies.  

(13) Movable cases, counters, and partitions not over five feet nine inches in height.  

(b) Electrical. 

 (1) Minor repair work, including the replacement of lamps or connection of approved portable 
electrical equipment to approved permanently installed receptacles.  

(2) The provisions of this code shall not apply to electrical equipment used for radio and television 
transmissions, but do not apply to equipment and wiring for power supply, the installation of 
towers and antennas.  

(3) A permit shall not be required for the installation of any temporary system required for the 
testing or servicing of electrical equipment or apparatus.  

(c) Gas. 

 (1) Portable heating appliance.  

(2) Replacement of any minor part that does not alter approval of equipment or make such 
equipment unsafe.  

(d) Mechanical. 

 (1) Portable heating appliance.  

(2) Portable ventilating equipment.  

(3) Portable cooling unit.  

(4) Steam, hot or chilled water piping within any heating or cooling equipment regulated by code.  

(5) Replacement of any part which does not alter its approval or make it unsafe.  

(6) Portable evaporative cooler.  

(7) Self-contained refrigeration system containing ten pounds or less of refrigerant and actuated by 
motors of one horsepower or less.  

(e) Plumbing. 

 (1) The stopping of leaks in drains, water, soil, waste or vent pipe provided, however, that if any 
concealed trap, drain pipe, water, soil, waste or vent pipe becomes defective and it becomes 
necessary to remove and replace the same with new material, such work shall be considered as 
new work and a permit shall be obtained and inspection made as provided in this code.  

(2) The clearing of stoppages or the repairing of leaks in pipes, valves or fixtures, and the removal 
and installation of water closets, provided such repairs do not involve or require the replacement 
or rearrangement of valves, pipes or fixtures.  

1711.07 REPAIRS. 

Application or notice to the building official is not required for ordinary repairs to structures, replacement of 
lamps or the connection of approved portable electrical equipment to approved permanently installed receptacles. 
Such repairs shall not include the cutting away of any wall, partition or portion thereof, the removal or cutting of 
any structural beam or load-bearing support, or the removal or change of any required means of egress or 
rearrangement of parts of a structure affecting the egress requirements; nor shall ordinary repairs include addition 

35

Section VIII, Item A.



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-12-18 13:53:13 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 6) 

 
Page 4 of 4 

to, alteration of, replacement of or relocation of any standpipe, water supply, sewer drainage, drain leader, gas, 
soil, waste, vent or similar piping, electrical wiring or mechanical or other work affecting public health or general 
safety.  

1711.08 EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This ordinance in its entirety shall become effective on February 5, 2024, hereby repealing and replacing the prior 
Article 1711 et seq of the Codified Ordinances of the Town of Ceredo.
 

36

Section VIII, Item A.



AN ORDINANCE CREATING THE CEREDO MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

ARTICLE 157.  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Sec�on 157.01. – Created; members; qualifica�ons; appointment; vacancies. 
 
There is hereby created the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission, which shall consist of five 
members. One member of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall be a member of 
Council, appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Council for a term coextensive with his 
term as a member of Council. One member shall be a member of the administra�ve 
department of the Town or a designee, appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Council 
for a term coextensive with his term of office. The other three members of the Ceredo 
Municipal Planning Commission shall be residents and taxpayers of the Town, who shall be 
appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Council. All members of the Ceredo Municipal 
Planning Commission shall be qualified by experience and knowledge in maters pertaining to 
the development of the municipality, and at least three members shall have resided in Ceredo 
for at least three years prior to their respec�ve dates of appointment. 
 
The membership of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall conform to the 
requirements of West Virginia statutes rela�ng thereto, and to W.Va. Code, 8A-2-2, in par�cular. 
Members of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission other than the Council member shall 
be appointed on or before January 1 of each year, to take office on January 1 of the year in 
which appointed, for staggered terms of three years each and un�l their successors are duly 
appointed and qualified, provided, the ini�al appointments other than the Council member and 
administra�ve staff member, shall be for terms of one, two, and three years. Vacancies other 
than those due to expira�on of term shall be filled for the unexpired term only. Members shall 
serve without compensa�on but shall be reimbursed for the reasonable and necessary 
expenses actually incurred in the performance of their du�es. 
 
Sec�on 157.02. – Official name; powers and du�es. 
 
The official name shall be the “Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission,” and the body is hereby 
vested with the powers and it shall perform the du�es prescribed for municipal planning 
commissions, with respect to planning as well as to zoning, in W.Va. Code, 8A-2-1 et seq. 
 
Sec�on 157.03. – General purpose. 
 

37

Section IX, Item A.



The general purpose of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall be to develop a 
comprehensive plan for future development by making careful and comprehensive surveys and 
studies of present condi�ons and future growth of the Town, with due regard its rela�on to 
neighboring territory, with the general purpose of guiding and accomplishing a coordinated, 
adjusted and harmonious development of the Town and its environs which will, in accordance 
with present and future needs, best promote health, safety, morals, order, convenience, 
prosperity and general welfare, as well as efficiency and economy in the process of 
development, including, among other things, adequate provision for traffic, the promo�on of 
healthful and convenient distribu�on of popula�on, the promo�on of good civic design and 
arrangement, preven�on of urban sprawl, wise and efficient expenditure of public funds, and 
the adequate provision of public u�li�es and other public requirements, including the 
prepara�on of a zoning ordinance for considera�on by Council. 
 
Sec�on 157.04. – Planning; approval of commission required. 
 

(a) The du�es of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission include the preparing of plans 
for the development of the whole or any por�on of the Town and any land outside 
thereof, which in the opinion of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission bears 
rela�on to the planning of the Town; provided, that the power of the Ceredo Municipal 
Planning Commission shall not extend beyond the territorial limits of the Town except so 
far as is reasonably necessary to protect the community, both within and without the 
corporate limits, against inadequate streets, highways and u�li�es, and inadequately 
planned and zoned territory. Such plans shall show recommenda�ons for new streets, 
bridges, parks, and other public areas or public improvements and maters properly 
pertaining to the purposes of the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission. 

 
(b) Before final ac�on is taken by the Town or any department thereof on the loca�on and 

design of any public building, public memorial, street, alleyway, park, playground or 
other public area, such ques�on shall be submited to the Ceredo Municipal Planning 
Commission for inves�ga�on and report. 
 

(c) The Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall have the authority to work in 
conjunc�on with the state, county, and neighboring municipali�es regarding the 
planning and development of areas outside the corporate limits of the Town. 
 

Sec�on 157.05. – Employing help; budget; coopera�on from other officials. 
 
The Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall have the power and authority, subject to 
approval of Council as hereina�er provided, to employ engineers and clerks, or any other help 

38

Section IX, Item A.



necessary and to meet all such expenses. The Commission shall submit to the Mayor and 
Council its budget requests for each fiscal year, and therea�er shall submit itemized expenses 
and amounts, and the purposes. The Council shall in its discre�on make such budget allowances 
to the Commission as it deems proper. All officials and employees of the Town shall, so far as 
prac�cable, give their services and submit any such data or informa�on as may be required to 
promote and effectuate the purposes of this Ar�cle. 
 
Sec�on 157.06. – President, vice-president and secretary; rules; mee�ngs; 
records. 
 
The Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission, from its membership, shall elect a president and 
vice-president and shall appoint a secretary. The Commission shall adopt such rules as may be 
necessary for the transac�on of its business, hold regular mee�ngs open to the public and shall 
keep a record of its official proceedings which shall be open to the public. 
 
Sec�on 157.07. – Contracts for expenditure of money. 
 
No contract for the expenditure of money by the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall 
be executed by the Commission or become effec�ve and binding on the Town un�l such 
contract has been atested by the secretary of the Commission and approved by the Mayor and 
Council. 
 
Sec�on 157.08. – Office. 
 
The Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission shall maintain an office in the Town Hall and the 
office of the Town Clerk is hereby designated as the office of the Ceredo Municipal Planning 
Commission. All records of the Commission shall be kept in that office, and the mailing address 
of the Commission shall be the address of Town Hall. 
 
Sec�on 157.09. – Plats or replats of land laid out in building lots. 
 
All plans, plats or replats of land laid out in building lots, and the streets intended to be 
dedicated to public use, shall be submited to the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission for its 
considera�on, and no such plat or replat shall be filed in the office of the Clerk of the County 
Court, as provided by law in other cases, un�l such plat or replat has endorsed upon it, the fact 
that it has first been submited to the Ceredo Municipal Planning Commission and by the 
Commission to the Mayor and duly approved by Council. 

 

 

39

Section IX, Item A.



 

40

Section IX, Item A.



41

Section IX, Item B.



 Member FDIC Page 1 of 3 

United VISA Purchasing Card – The United VISA Purchasing Card is designed to streamline and simplify your company’s
purchasing process. When you use your purchasing card, you can eliminate costly invoices, purchase orders and other time-
consuming ordering procedures. 

United VISA Fleet Card – The United VISA Fleet is a value-added product complement to the United VISA Purchasing Card
that provides fleet operators with enhanced data capture and reporting capabilities to effectively manage fuel, maintenance and 
other fleet related expenses.  

Designed to Meet Your Specific Needs – Both the United VISA Purchasing Card and United VISA Fleet Card have built-
in controls that give you the ability to set individual transaction limits and include or exclude specific merchant category codes for 
employees. These features enable you to have greater control of your purchasing or fleet card program. 

Flexible Billing and Management Reports – With the United VISA Purchasing Card and United VISA Fleet Card, you
can select either individual or consolidated billing for payment flexibility. You also receive reports that allow you to track spending, 
monitor vendor volumes at a glance, and streamline tax preparations. Choose from reports that are mailed to you on a monthly 
basis or a comprehensive software reporting system that allows you to generate reports as needed. 

Core Services Provided at No Cost to You – With the United VISA Purchasing Card and United VISA Fleet Card, you
will receive a package of core benefits at no charge to you. Your services include: 

• VISA Liability Waiver Program - Protects organizations and issuers from possible card misuse by employees.
• Auto Rental Insurance (ARI) - Provides coverage for damage due to collision and theft up to actual cash value of most

rental cars.
• Emergency Card and Cash Replacement - Replaces lost or stolen VISA cards and provides cardholders with up to $5000

if cards are lost or stolen.
• Travel and Emergency Assistance - Provides help and referrals for a wide range of travel and emergency needs.
• VISA Assistance Center (VAC) - Help desk for VISA cardholders 24 hours-a-day, 365 days-per-year.

• Unsurpassed Worldwide Acceptance – VISA is accepted in over 150 countries at more than 20 million locations around the
world. If you choose to allow your employee(s) to access cash, over 855,000 ATM and branch locations worldwide assure
cardholders of cash access anytime, anywhere.

These services are provided to you by either VISA or by the Bank and third party providers selected by VISA which pays for them. 
The Bank therefore is not responsible for the availability, use, acts or omissions of VISA or the third party providers it has selected. 

United VISA Purchasing/Fleet Card Fee Schedule 
(As of March 2021) 
Annual Fee 
Interest Rate 

Late Fee  $29.00 
Overlimit Fee  $29.00 
Returned Check Fee  $25.00 
Retrieval Fee 

 $25.00 

Important Information About Procedures for 
Opening a New Account 

To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and 
money laundering activities, Federal law requires all financial 
institutions to obtain, verify, and record information that 
identifies each person who opens an account or requests a 
loan.  What this means for you: When you open an account or 
request a loan, we will ask for your name, address, date of 
birth, and other information that will allow us to identify you. 
We may also ask to see your driver’s license or other identifying 
documents.  We may ask our established customers for 
identification and we will use this information to update our files. 

7 - 10 days 
Replacement Card 

3 - 5 days 
 No Fee 
 $10.00 

24 Hours 
Report Fees 

Standard  No Charge 
Specialized  Available Upon Request 
Cash Advance Fee Not Available 

 $25.00 

 (Subject to change quarterly) 
 Wall Street Journal Prime + 6% 

 No Fee 

42

Section IX, Item C.



 Member FDIC Page 2 of 3 

COMPANY PROFILE

Complete Legal Name of Company Tax ID No. 

Business Street Address City State Zip Code 

Business Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

Business Phone No. Business Fax No. 
Mo: Year: 

Nature of Business No. of Employees Date Business Established 

Business Contact Name (Program Coordinator) Contact Phone No. Gross Annual Revenue($) 

Program Coordinator Email 

Program Coordinator Signature Date 
Credit Limit Requested: $   

ACCOUNT OPTIONS 
Billing Options (Choose One): 
☐ Option 1 - Monthly Consolidated Bill (one statement to the Program Coordinator and memo statement to each cardholder). With this option, the
transactions of each account will post as a combined total to an assigned control account, for one payment convenience. Statement balance due in full
monthly.

☐ Option 2 - Monthly Individual Bill (each cardholder receives a statement). Statement balance due in full monthly.

LOAN REQUEST 
Purpose of Card 
☐ Working Capital  ☐ Business  ☐ Purchases  ☐ Travel/Entertainment  ☐All  ☐ Farm  ☐ Community Development
☐ Other

If applicable, please list current United 
Commercial Loan Officer/Office 
Location  

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
Please provide year-end Business Financial Statement in addition to the documents below with your application: 
  Sole Proprietorship Corporation 

• Current personal financial statement (F/S)
• Tradename & Registration
• Borrowing Resolution
• Authorized cardholder form (Attachment A for each cardholder)

• Current F/S for each principal
• Previous 3 years’ tax returns for each principal
• Articles of Incorporation
• Corporate By-laws
• Borrowing Resolution
• Authorized cardholder form (Attachment A for each cardholder)

Partnership/Limited Liability Company Lodge, Non-Profit, Association, Other: 
• Current F/S for each Partner
• Previous 3 years’ tax returns for each partner
• Partnership/Operating Agreement
• Articles of Organization
• Borrowing Resolution
• Authorized cardholder form (Attachment A for each cardholder)

• Lodge/ Association Resolution 
• Organizational By-Laws
• Organization Board of Director Meeting Minutes –Borrowing

Resolution was adopted/ voted to apply for VISA Purchasing/Fleet
card and credit limit

• Business financials 
• Authorized cardholder form (Attachment A for each cardholder) 

The Bank may require additional documentation to complete the application process. 

UNITED BANK VISA PURCHASING/FLEET 
CARD APPLICATION 
 Please select one option below for which you are applying: 
☐ VISA Purchasing Card  ☐ VISA Purchasing Fleet Card

700 B ST 25507

304-453-1042

25,000

55-6008186

25507CEREDO WV

02/05/2024

TOWN OF CEREDO

PO BOX 691

CEREDO WV

43

Section IX, Item C.

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight



 Member FDIC Page 3 of 3 

NAME ON CARD AND AUTHORIZED EMPLOYEES 
Company Name to be displayed on card(s) – maximum of 21 characters 

SIGNATURES AND AUTHORIZATION 
1. Each signatory has read the application and any accompanying documents and affirms that the information therein contained

is true and correct and complete and not misleading, requests that a purchasing/fleet card account be opened in the name of
the business applicant and agrees to the terms set out herein.

2. Each signatory understands and agrees that individual credit cards will be issued to named officers or employees of the
purchasing/fleet card applicant, with both the name of the business applicant and the individual officer or employees
thereon, and that while each card may have a different credit card number, all of the cards fall under the single account of the
business applicant.  Each named individual officer may also be required to sign a personal guaranty regarding charges and
advances attributable to his or her own credit card number or card issued to an employee.

3. Your business and personal credit history and the credit history of both the business applicant and any other designated
individual officer may be searched by us and you authorize us to obtain business or personal credit information and reports from
credit reporting agencies, and we have the right to share information regarding the purchasing/fleet card account with others
whom we believe have proper need or use for that information.

4. Each signatory hereto represents that his or her signature below is genuine and his or her proper title or office with the
business  applicant is true and correct, and that the signature or other action of no other officer, director, employee or agent is
required in order to bind the business applicant to the terms and conditions of the purchasing/fleet card account arrangement,
and that the signatures below are sufficient to bind the purchasing/fleet card account arrangement upon the business
applicant.

5. Each signatory hereto, in consideration of the opening and existence of the purchasing/fleet card account applied for herein, personally
and individually, jointly and severally, unconditionally guarantees the prompt and full payment of all amounts due or to become due under
the purchasing/fleet card account arrangement applied for herein, and all interest and charges in connection with this purchasing/fleet
card account arrangement, both now existing or which may be incurred or imposed in the future. If one or more of the obligations
guaranteed hereby are not fully and timely paid or performed when due, each signatory hereto agrees that, upon request, you will pay or
perform that obligation, without regard to any action on our part concerning the account. Each signatory agrees that no extension(s) of
time, nor any other indulgence(s) granted by us to the purchasing/fleet card applicant or to any party signatory hereto, nor omission or
delay by us in exercising any right against, or in taking action to collect from or pursue any other remedy, shall operate as a defense to this
guaranty or otherwise affect your obligations hereunder.

6. This agreement is binding upon, and inures to the benefit of, the assigns, successors in interest, executors, administrators, heirs, devisees
and legatees of the parties to this agreement.

7. Company Responsibilities - Use of Cards for Business Purposes only in Accordance with Agreement.  By signing this agreement, the
company is bound by all of the terms and conditions of any subsequent amendments.  The company agrees (and agrees to notify its
cardholders) that the card may be used for business purposes only and will not be used for personal, family or household purposes, or for
any transaction illegal under state law, federal law, the law of any jurisdiction where the card may be used, or under applicable Network
rules.  The company is responsible for any use of a card by an authorized user, including any illegal or other prohibited use.  The company
shall establish and monitor internal procedures and guidelines for use of the cards.  The Bank will have no obligation to inquire or verify
whether use of a card by an authorized user complies with such procedures or guidelines.

Note: The Application must be signed by a person or persons with authority to bind the entity applying for credit, as shown 
on the banking resolution on file with the Bank. 

Principal (print name) Social Security No. Date of Birth 

Title Personal Street Address City, State, Zip 

Signature Date 

Principal (print name) Social Security No. Date of Birth 

Title Personal Street Address City, State, Zip 

Signature Date 

Principal (print name) Social Security No. Date of Birth 

Title Personal Street Address City, State, Zip 

Signature Date 

PAUL A BILLUPS

MAYOR

T O W N O F C E R E D O

02/05/2024

44

Section IX, Item C.

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight



United Purchasing Card Agreement 

THIS PURCHASING CARD AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the date of issuance of Visa(s) account cards (the 
“Effective Date”) to the entity named therein (the “Company”), and UNITED BANK a 
Virginia chartered bank (the “Bank”). 

Recitals: 
The Company desires to establish a Visa Purchasing/Fleet Card Account and/or Virtual Accounts (the “Visa Purchasing Card Account”) 
with the Bank for business and commercial use and obtain various services of the Bank in connection with the Visa Purchasing Card 
(the “Services”). Virtual Accounts may be established by the Bank for the Company or Customer for a single use or for ongoing use. 
This Agreement sets forth the terms and conditions upon which the Bank will establish the Visa Purchasing/Fleet Card, issue Visa 
Cards or Virtual Account Numbers (each, a “Card” and collectively, the “Cards”) to the Company and perform the Services. The 
Company and the Bank, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 

1. VISA CARD MINIMUM; CARDHOLDER ACCOUNTS. The Company will at all times have at least one Card(s) issued and
outstanding. One account, bearing a distinct account number and selected activity limits (a “Cardholder Account”), will be
established by the Bank for each Card requested by the Company and issued. Each Card will be issued for use by an employee
of the Company to facilitate the purchases of and payments for business goods and services, as designated by the Company as
provided in Paragraph 4 below (an “Authorized Cardholder”).
2. BUSINESS PURPOSES. It is understood that the Company has applied for a Card account solely for business and commercial
purposes, and the Company agrees to so advise each Authorized Cardholder that the Card may be used for business purposes only
and shall not be used for personal, family or household purposes, or for any transaction illegal under Virginia law, federal law, the law
of any jurisdiction where the card may be used, or under applicable Network rules. The Company is responsible for any use of a Card
by an Authorized Cardholder, including any illegal or nonbusiness use and the Company’s obligation hereunder shall not be affected
or limited if any balances are incurred for any nonbusiness or illegal purpose. The Company shall establish and monitor internal
procedures and guidelines for use of the Cards by the Authorized Cardholders. The Bank shall have no obligation to inquire or verify
whether use of a Card by an Authorized Cardholder complies with such procedures or guidelines.
3. SERVICES. Cards may be used to purchase business goods or services (“Purchases”) wherever Visa credit cards are accepted,
subject to applicable activity limits and the Company Credit Limit (as defined in Paragraph 5). If the Company has so elected and
“Cash Advances” are available with respect to this Account as one of the Services available for which such Authorized Cardholder
may use such Authorized Cardholder’s Card, cash may be advanced (loaned) (“Advances”), subject to applicable activity limits on
the related Cardholder Account and the Company Credit Limit, by presenting the Card at Visa member banks or institutions or by
making a withdrawal of cash by using the Card at any automatic teller machine (“ATM”).
4. ISSUANCE OF CARDS.
a. The Bank will issue a Card to each Authorized Cardholder designated in writing to the Bank by the Program Coordinator. The
initial Program Coordinator (including any alternate Program Coordinator(s)) is set forth on the application. If there is more than
one Program Coordinator, the action or signature of any one Program Coordinator shall constitute sufficient authorization. The
Company will notify the Bank in writing whenever a Program Coordinator is added or removed. Except as the Company shall
otherwise direct the Bank in writing, the Company hereby authorizes and directs the Bank to issue a renewal or replacement Card
before the expiration of each Card.
b. The Company acknowledges and agrees that Cards are not assignable or transferable, by operation of law or otherwise, and
that any Card may be canceled by the Bank at any time for any reason, without notice, except as applicable law requires. Such
cancellation shall in no way impair the Company’s existing obligations to the Bank. Any and all Cards shall be surrendered to the
Bank at its request.
c. It is understood and agreed that use of a Card constitutes an extension of credit from the Bank to the Company. The Company
shall be liable for all charges made using a Card, except as provided in Paragraph 19 with respect to continued unauthorized use
after receipt of notice by the Bank.
d. The Company shall be liable for all charges resulting from use of a Card by an Authorized Cardholder following termination of 
such Authorized Cardholder’s employment with the Company unless and until the Company has notified the Bank to cancel the Card 
in accordance with Paragraph 15 and subject to applicable terms and conditions of the Visa Purchasing Card Program.
5. COMPANY CREDIT LIMIT; CARDHOLDER ACCOUNTS ACTIVITY/SPENDING LIMITS.
a. The Bank will establish a total credit line for Purchases, and, if applicable, for Advances, which total credit limit shall initially be in
such amount as the Bank may fix, notice of which limit will be provided to the Company from time to time (the “Company Credit
Limit”). For purposes of this Agreement, Visa Purchasing Card Accounts for which the Company Credit Limit is equal to $35,000 or
less shall be referred to sometimes hereinafter as a “Small Business Visa Purchasing Card Account.” The Bank may, at its
discretion, change the Company Credit Limit, or the dollar amount and activity/spending limits for any Cardholder Accounts, at any 
time, whether after receipt of a written request by the Company or otherwise. The Bank will notify the Program Coordinator in 

Purchasing Card Agreement rev 04.2021 

TOWN OF CEREDO

45

Section IX, Item C.



writing whenever such change occurs. The Company shall also specify to the Bank in writing the credit limit for each Authorized 
Cardholder, but the aggregate of all such credit limits shall at no time exceed the then specified Company Credit Limit. 
b. The Company agrees that it may, from time to time, have other obligations outstanding to the Bank, its affiliates or subsidiaries of 
United Bankshares, Inc. The Company agrees that the amount of the Company Credit Limit represents an extension of credit that shall 
be included in determining the total obligations outstanding at any time by the Company to the Bank and/or to any of the Bank’s affiliates 
or any subsidiary of United Bankshares, Inc. Any commitment to make extensions of credit by the Bank, its affiliates or any subsidiary 
of United Bankshares, Inc. may, in the discretion of the Bank, its affiliates or any subsidiary of United Bankshares, Inc., be reduced by 
the amount of Company Credit Limit. 
c. The Company agrees to advise Authorized Cardholders of activity/spending limits with respect to Cardholder Accounts, including 
but not limited to the maximum number of transactions or maximum aggregate dollar amount of transaction or transactions permitted 
for such Cardholder Account during any period. The Company understands that once an activity limit is reached with respect to any 
Cardholder Account, the Bank has no obligation to honor further uses of the Card associated with such Cardholder Account until 
such applicable activity/spending limit period has expired or the Company advises the Bank of a change to the limit in accordance 
with Paragraph 15. The Company further understands that once the Company Credit Limit is reached, the Bank has no obligation to 
honor the further use of any Cards unless all Cardholder Account balances are paid in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
d. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Company’s liability for charges to Cardholder Accounts as provided by this 
Agreement shall not be limited (i) by the Company Credit Limit or (ii) as to any Authorized Cardholder by the activity/spending level 
for the related Cardholder Account, including any limit with respect to the dollar amount of transactions requested by the Company 
or agreed to by the Bank with respect to charges to such Cardholder Account by such Authorized Cardholder. If the outstanding 
balances on all Cardholder Accounts, in the aggregate, exceed the Company Credit Limit, the Company shall remain fully liable to 
pay the Bank and/or any of the Bank’s affiliates or any subsidiary of United Bankshares, Inc. for all such amounts, together with all 
finance charges and other fees agreed to herein. 
6. PROMISE TO PAY; FINANCE CHARGES; FEES; TAXES.  
a. The Company agrees to pay the Bank, when due, the total of all Purchases and Advances, charged to the Cards, in accordance 
with Paragraph 7 of this Agreement, subject to applicable law. The Company also agrees to pay the Bank a finance charge on such 
transactions at the rate specified in Paragraph 7 and the fees and other charges set forth in the Fee Schedule provided with respect 
to this Account, which may be amended by the Bank at its discretion, from time to time as provided below. 
b. Unless otherwise agreed in writing the Bank reserves the right to amend the Fee Schedule at any time and from time to time 
upon 15 days’ prior written notice to the Company. The Company further agrees to pay all costs and expenses, including court 
costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the Bank in enforcing this Agreement. 
7. PAYMENT; FINANCE CHARGES. The Company agrees to pay: 
a. Except for Small Business Visa Purchasing Card Accounts, on each Monthly Payment Due Date (which for purposes of this 
Agreement means, for all accounts that receive monthly statements, the date that is 25 days after the date of the corresponding 
monthly statement, as provided for on the application), the amount necessary to settle all balances on all of the Cardholder 
Accounts, on which it shall pay the balance in full as directed on the application. 
b. With respect to Small Business Visa Purchasing Card Accounts (as defined above), on each Monthly Payment Due Date, the 
amount necessary to settle all balances on all of the Cardholder Accounts, on which it shall pay at least the amount of 2.78% of the 
balance or payment as directed on the application. 
c. With respect to all Visa Purchasing Card Accounts which receive semi-monthly statements in accordance with Paragraph 8 
hereof, on each Semi-Monthly Payment Due Date (which for purposes of this Agreement means, for all accounts that receive 
semimonthly statements, the date that is 14 days after the date of the corresponding semi-monthly statement, as provided for on 
the application), the amount necessary to settle all balances on all of the Cardholder Accounts, on which it shall pay the balance in 
full as directed on the application. 
d. Notwithstanding (a) through (c) above, if the Company has enrolled in the Daily Automatic Payment Plan, you agree as follows: 
(1) You authorize us to initiate Automated Clearing House (ACH) transfers by debit entries drawn on the bank account you have 
identified to us in your application for your Visa Purchasing Card Account or any other account that you identify to us from time to 
time (“Bank Account”); (2) We will initiate ACH debit entries from your Bank Account daily in the amount of your Daily Current 
Balance, which is equal to the opening balance on your Visa Purchase Card Account, regardless of any disputed amounts, 
determined during the Bank’s nightly update each processing day; (3) You agree that in the event any debit is rejected or dishonored 
we may reinitiate the debit once; (4) You have provided us with all necessary information for the Bank Account that you wish us to 
debit and the Bank Account on which the ACH debits are authorized is a legitimate, open and active account, and you agree to 
notify us promptly if this information changes; (5) Once enrolled, automatic payments will continue daily until you notify us that you 
wish to terminate your enrollment in the Daily Automatic Payment Plan, or we terminate your enrollment; and (6) The Bank is not 
responsible for any fees that may be charged by your depository institution as a result of your participation in the Daily Automatic 
Payment Plan. 
e. All finance charges, fees and charges as and when due in accordance with the procedures determined by the Bank. The 

Purchasing Card Agreement rev 04.2021 

46

Section IX, Item C.



finance charge applicable to both Purchases and Advances shall be a fluctuating annual rate that is equal to the Index Rate plus 
6%. Such annual rate will be adjusted upward or downward on the 15th day of the calendar month immediately preceding the start 
of that quarter to reflect changes in the Index Rate. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Index Rate is the highest prime rate 
as quoted in the Wall Street Journal. The corresponding daily periodic rate will be applied to the average daily balance of the 
Cardholder Accounts. Such finance charge shall begin to accrue, with respect to Advances on the date each transaction is posted 
to the Cardholder Account, and with respect to Purchases, on the date that is 14 days after the date of any semi-monthly statement 
or 25 days after the date of any monthly statement. 
f. Upon demand, such additional fees and charges as the result of late payment or over limit are as specified in the Fee Schedule. 
g. In addition to the other payment obligations of the Company pursuant to this Agreement, the Company agrees to pay 
immediately the full amount of any outstanding balance exceeding the Company Credit Limit. 
8. PERIODIC STATEMENTS; DISPUTED BILLINGS.  
a. Except for those Visa Purchasing Card Accounts for which either the Company opts on its application to receive semi-monthly 
statements or the Bank, in its discretion, requires the issuance of semi-monthly statements due to the amount of the Company 
Credit Limit, the Bank will furnish monthly statements according to the option checked on the application (or if none is checked, 
option (1)): 
b. Each monthly or semi-monthly consolidated statement, as the case may be, will be in the Bank’s standard format and will reflect all 
transactions posted to all Cardholder Accounts, all activity related to the charging of fees and charges under this Agreement and any 
credits with respect to such activity, for the applicable period. Each monthly or semi-monthly statement sent to individual Authorized 
Cardholders will reflect all transactions posted to each Cardholder Account for the applicable period for such Authorized Cardholder. 
Semi-monthly or monthly payments shall be made in accordance with the terms of each statement and this Agreement. 
c. If the Company or an Authorized Cardholder disputes, or suspects an error has been made with respect to, any charges or 
billings, the Company must notify the Bank within 60 days of the date of the statement on which the disputed charge or error first 
appeared, or the Company waives any rights with respect to such disputed amount. Disputes regarding charges or billings under 
this Agreement shall be communicated in writing to the Bank at the address specified in Paragraph 18 below. Communications 
must include the Authorized Cardholder’s name and the Cardholder Account number, the dollar amount of any dispute or suspected 
error, the reference number and a brief description of the dispute or suspected error. Disputed billings are categorized as, but not 
necessarily limited to, failure to receive goods or services charged, fraud, forgery, altered charges and charges incurred by 
telephone order where the authenticity of the charge is in question. 
9. ALLOCATION OF PAYMENTS. The Bank may apply each payment made by the Company in any order the Bank determines 
at the time payment is made to be appropriate (whether it be applied first to fees and other charges as may then be outstanding or 
first to the outstanding balance of the Visa Purchasing Card Account or otherwise), or among the Cardholders Accounts in such 
fashion as the bank deems appropriate. 
10. COMPANY REPRESENTATIONS; CERTIFICATES; FINANCIAL INFORMATION; REQUIRED NOTICES; AND CREDIT 
REPORTS.  
a. The Company represents and warrants to the Bank that (i) it is a corporation, general partnership, limited partnership, limited 
liability company, limited liability partnership or association duly organized and existing under the laws of its domicile and has the 
power and authority to execute, deliver, perform and take all actions contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) all such action has been 
duly and validly authorized by all necessary proceedings on the Company’s part, and (iii) this Agreement has been duly executed 
and delivered by the Company and constitutes the valid, legal and binding agreement of the Company enforceable against it in 
accordance with its terms. 
b. The Company agrees to furnish the Bank, upon the Bank’s request, such further authorizations, verifications and certificates 
as the Bank may require from time to time with respect to this Agreement, including the authority and true signature of any Program 
Coordinator. 
c. The Company shall deliver to the Bank as soon as available and in any event not later than 120 days after the end of each 
fiscal year of the Company, financial statements of the Company in form and detail satisfactory to the Bank. The Company further 
agrees to provide the Bank from time to time such other information regarding the current financial condition of the Company as 
the Bank may reasonably request. 
d. The Company shall promptly notify the Bank of the occurrence of any event, condition, act, or fact which would constitute a 
material adverse change in, or would otherwise involve a substantial risk of any material adverse effect on, the business, operations, 
conditions (financial or other) or prospects of the Company. 
11. CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION.  
a. In connection with the Services and this Agreement, the Bank and the Company will be providing to each other, whether orally, 
in writing or in electronic format, non-public, confidential or proprietary information (collectively, “Confidential Information”). Each of 
the Company and the Bank agrees (i) to hold the Confidential Information of the other in strict confidence, (ii) not to disclose or permit 
any other person or entity access to the Confidential Information of the other party, except for disclosure or access to employees, 
officers, directors, agents, representatives, external or internal auditors or regulatory authorities of a party requiring disclosure or 
access in the course of employment or services, and (iii) not to use such Confidential Information 
Purchasing Card Agreement rev 04.2021 

47

Section IX, Item C.



except in connection with the Services and for the purposes of this Agreement. It is understood and agreed that the obligation to protect 
such Confidential Information shall be satisfied if the party receiving such Confidential Information utilized the same control (but no less 
than reasonable) to avoid disclosure of its own confidential and valuable information. It is also understood and agreed that no 
information shall be within the protection of this Agreement where such information: (A) is or becomes publicly available through no 
fault of the party to whom such Confidential Information has been disclosed; (B) is released by the originating party to anyone without 
restriction; (C) is rightly obtained from third parties not to such receiving party’s knowledge under obligation of confidentiality; or (D) is 
required to be disclosed by subpoena or similar process of applicable law or regulations. 
b. For the purposes of this Agreement, Confidential Information of the Bank shall include, without limitation, all technical information, 
design, process, procedure or improvements related to the Card or this Agreement and all concepts, documentation, reports, data, 
data formats, specifications, computer software, source code, object code, user manuals, financial models, screen displays and 
formats, software, databases, inventions, know-how, show-how and trade secrets developed for the Company under this Agreement, 
whether or not patentable or copyrightable, together with all memoranda, analyses, compilations, studies, notes, records, drawings, 
manuals, or other documents or materials which contain or otherwise reflect any of the foregoing information. 
c. Each of the Company and the Bank agrees to return to the other all Confidential Information of the other upon the termination 
of this Agreement; provided, however, each party may retain such limited information for customary archival and audit purposes 
only for reference with respect to prior dealings between the parties subject at all times to the continuing terms of the Paragraph 
11a. Each of the Company and the Bank agrees not to use the other’s name in any marketing, advertising or related materials, 
without the prior written consent of the other party. 
12. EVENTS OF DEFAULT. The following constitute events of default (each a Default) under this Agreement: 
a. Any payment is not made on the applicable payment due date or any other obligation under this Agreement is not paid as and 
when it is due; or 
b. The terms of this Agreement are breached by the Company in any manner; or 
c. The Company’s borrowings hereunder exceed the Company Credit Limit; or 
d. The Company fails to make any payment as and when due or otherwise defaults under the terms of any other obligation to the 
Bank, or to any of the Bank’s affiliates or any subsidiary of United Bankshares, Inc., whether such obligation exists now or comes 
into existence in the future; or 
e. The Company defaults (as principal or as guarantor or other surety) in any payment of, or as to any covenant or agreement 
with respect to, any obligation (or set of related obligations) to a third party in respect of indebtedness for borrowed money in excess 
of $50,000 in the aggregate amount beyond any period of grace with respect thereto if the effect of such default is to cause, or to 
permit all or part of such obligation or obligations to become due before stated maturity; or 
f. A bankruptcy petition is filed by or against the Company; or 
g. A significant change occurs in the Company’s ownership or the Bank or any of the Bank’s affiliates or any subsidiary of United 
Bankshares, Inc. determines that a material adverse change in the Company’s financial condition has occurred or is about to occur; 
or 
h. The Company becomes insolvent or is dissolved, or the Bank otherwise believes in good faith that the prospect of performance 
under this Agreement is impaired. 
13.  REMEDIES. In the event of any Default, the Bank may, at its option, and without prior notification; (a) close any or all Cardholder 
Accounts to use; (b) accelerate payment of the full balance on any or all Cardholder Accounts and thereby require immediate payment 
of the full balance of such Accounts, including but not limited to all accrued fees and other charges; (c) accelerate payment of the full 
balance of all amounts accrued under this Agreement and thereby require immediate payment of the full balance of such amounts, 
including but not limited to accrued fees and other charges; (d) terminate this Agreement (which termination shall be deemed to be a 
termination for cause); or the Bank or any of its affiliates or any subsidiary of United Bankshares, Inc. to which the Company owes any 
obligation may, at their option, (e) declare a default under any other obligation owing by the Company to the Bank or its affiliates or any 
subsidiary of United Bankshares, Inc.. 
14. BANKER’S LIEN AND RIGHT OF SETOFF. The Company hereby grants the Bank and its affiliates and all subsidiaries of 
United Bankshares, Inc., a general lien and right of setoff on any of the Company’s accounts or other property in the Bank’s 
possession or in the possession of any of the Bank’s affiliates or any subsidiary of United Bankshares, Inc. to secure all obligations 
under this Agreement and any current or future indebtedness of the Company to the Bank or any of the Bank’s affiliates or any 
subsidiary of United Bankshares, Inc. whether under this Agreement or any other agreement . 
15. CANCELLATION OF CARDS; REDUCTION OF LIMITS ON CARDHOLDER ACCOUNTS.  
a. If the Company at any time desires to cancel (including as a result of the termination of an Authorized Cardholder’s employment 
or other reason which in Company’s discretion warrants cancellation of any Card) or reduce or otherwise change any limit or other 
requirements on any outstanding Card, the Program Coordinator shall so notify the Bank in writing, at the address specified in 
Paragraph 18 below, specifying the requested date of such action. A change to any limit or other requirement on a Card with respect 
to a particular transaction or transactions may be given orally by such Program Coordinator, on which the Bank may rely; provided, 
however, that for any such change to become permanent such change must be requested in writing by the Program Coordinator to the 
Bank. The Bank will have a reasonable time thereafter within which to comply with any such notice. 

Purchasing Card Agreement rev 04.2021 

48

Section IX, Item C.



b. Upon cancellation of any Card or termination of any Cardholder Account, the Company will promptly notify the affected Authorized
Cardholder and will use its best efforts to obtain the canceled Card and return it, cut in half, to the Bank. Upon cancellation of a Card (other 
than a lost or stolen Card as to which the Bank has received notice) or termination of any Cardholder Account, including as a result of
termination of employment of an Authorized Cardholder or other reason in the Company’s discretion that warrants termination, as to which 
the Bank has received notice, the Company shall remain liable for all outstanding balances incurred by the use of such Card prior to such 
cancellation or termination and within 30 days thereafter, including all outstanding balances for transactions that may be posted to the
Cardholder Account after cancellation or termination and all fees and other charges of any type as shall have accrued or as shall occur or 
accrue to the Bank with respect to such Cardholder Account. Upon reduction of or change in any limit or other requirement on any
outstanding Card, the Company will promptly notify the Authorized Cardholder. Notwithstanding any such notice, the Company shall remain 
liable for all amounts incurred by the use of such Card. 
16. TERMINATION.
a. This Agreement shall be for a term of three years (the “Initial Term”), and shall automatically be renewed for consecutive
periods of three years each (a “Renewal Term”), unless either the Company or the Bank has given the other party written notice at
least 30 days prior to the termination of the Initial Term or then current Renewal Term that the Agreement will not be renewed.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company and the Bank may each terminate this Agreement at any time either (a) immediately
for cause; or (b) without cause upon at least 90 days’ prior written notice to the other party (which notice shall specify the date of
termination), and in such case, and in the case of the Initial Term or any Renewal Term not being extended as provided above, no
Card shall be used for any Purchase or any Advance on or after that date which is 15 calendar days preceding the date of
termination or the last day of the Initial Term or Renewal Term, as applicable.
b. Notwithstanding any termination of this Agreement, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect with respect to (i) all
transactions hereunder that occur prior to the date of such termination, (ii) all fees and other charges as shall have accrued or as
shall occur or accrue to the Bank with respect to such transactions, (iii) the confidentiality provisions set forth in Paragraph 11 of
this Agreement, (iv) the general lien and right of setoff of the Bank, its affiliates and all subsidiaries of United Bankshares, Inc. as
provided in Paragraph 14 of this Agreement, (v) the indemnity provided by the Company in Paragraph 22 of this Agreement, and
(vi) the waiver of jury trial, venue and enforcement provisions of Paragraph 26. Further, upon any termination, the Company shall
reimburse the Bank for any out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Bank in connection with this Agreement and the Services,
including without limitation the costs associated with unused customized cards and forms.
c. In addition, the Bank may terminate any or all of Cardholder Accounts at any time, without notice, subject to applicable law, even
though the Company or the Authorized Cardholder may not have defaulted on any such Cardholder Account. If the Bank terminates
a Cardholder Account, the Company agrees to use all reasonable efforts to obtain all Cards issued on that Cardholder Account and
return them, cut in half, to the Bank or otherwise destroy them. Notwithstanding such termination, this Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect and the Company shall continue to be liable for full payment with respect to (i) the balance on the closed Cardholder
Account and all charges to such Cardholder Account, including but not limited to Purchases, Advances, and any transactions that
post after such Account is closed, and (ii) all fees and other charges of any type as shall have accrued or as shall occur or accrue to
the Bank with respect to such transactions.
17. CHANGE IN TERMS.
a. The Bank may change the terms of this Agreement (including any changes to any attachment) at any time, subject, however,
with respect to fees and other charges, to Paragraph 6 of this Agreement. The Bank will give the Program Coordinator 15 days’
written notice of any change in terms of this Agreement. New terms may apply to both new Purchases and Advances and any other
transactions that post after such Account is closed, and to the outstanding balances on the Card Account.
b. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Paragraph 17, the terms of any Authorized Cardholder Form may be amended
with respect to any change of any Program Coordinator by written notice to the Bank, and any change of the Program Coordinator
may be made by written notice to the Bank from an authorized executive officer of the Company, subject at such time to such
additional authorizations, verifications and certificates as the Bank may require at the time of such amendment.
18. LOST OR STOLEN CARDS. The Company agrees to notify the Bank immediately if the Company suspects or knows that a Card
is lost or stolen by calling the following telephone number: (800) 242-7600. The Company must immediately follow up the telephone
call with written notice of the suspected or actual loss or theft of a Card to the Bank at:

UNITED BANK 
514 Market Street • P. O. Box 1382 
Parkersburg, WV 26102-1382 
Attention: Bankcard Center • Fax # (304) 295-9355 

19. LIABILITY FOR UNAUTHORIZED USE.
a. NOTICE: The Company will be liable for the unauthorized use of Cards, but not for unauthorized use that occurs after the Company
notifies the Bank, either orally at (800) 242-7600 or in writing at the address stated in Paragraph 18 of this Agreement, but in no event
will the Company’s liability for such unauthorized use exceed the limit set by applicable State or Federal law.

Purchasing Card Agreement rev 04.2021 

49

Section IX, Item C.



b. Except as liability may be limited under subparagraph (a) above, the Company shall be liable for all unauthorized use of any
Card, as well as any fraud involving the use of any Card, without regard to such limitation. The Company will not, however, be
liable for any unauthorized use that continues after the Bank is notified orally or in writing of unauthorized use. Use of a Card by
an Authorized Cardholder at any time, even if an Authorized Cardholder is no longer employed or associated with the Company,
shall not constitute unauthorized use, subject to applicable law and Paragraph 15 of this Agreement. To report the unauthorized
use of a Card, the Company may contact the Bank by telephone at the number shown in subparagraph (a) above or at the number
on each periodic statement. The Company may also notify the Bank in writing at the address stated in Paragraph 18 of this
Agreement.
c. The Company understands that the liability any Authorized Cardholder may separately have to the Company for the
unauthorized use of any Card is the lesser of the limit set by applicable State or Federal law or the amount to which the unauthorized
use pertains.
20. COLLATERAL SECURITY. All indebtedness and obligations of the Company arising under this Agreement are unsecured,
unless there is a separate agreement granting the Bank security for the repayment of such indebtedness.
21. FORCE MAJEURE. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, the Bank shall not be liable for any failure, inability 
to perform, or delay in performance hereunder, if such failure, inability, or delay is due to, without limitation, acts of God, acts or
omissions of Visa, the Company or any third party, severe weather, war, civil commotion, government action, flood, storm, fire,
explosion, strikes, other industrial disturbances, computer viruses or hacking, computer, network or other equipment failure or
malfunction, national emergency, pandemic or epidemic, or any other cause beyond the Bank’s reasonable control.
22. INDEMNIFICATION. The Company shall indemnify and hold harmless the Bank and its affiliates and any subsidiary of United
Bankshares, Inc., and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents, from and against any and all losses, claims, damages, 
liabilities, judgments or amounts paid in settlement (or actions, suits or proceedings, or investigations in respect thereof), including
reasonable attorneys’ fees (collectively, “Losses”) resulting from, relating to or arising out of this Agreement and the Service except to
the extent such Losses solely result from, arise out of or relate to the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Bank or its affiliates
or any subsidiary of United Bankshares, Inc., or their respective directors, officers, employees or agents.
23. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES, SPECIAL DAMAGES AND LIABILITIES. THE BANK SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL
WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING
BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR
NONINFRINGEMENT, EACH OF WHICH IS EXPRESSLY EXCLUDED BY AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES.
In addition, the Company acknowledges and agrees that VISA USA and VISA INTERNATIONAL shall not be responsible for any
claims, losses, damages or liabilities incurred by any Visa member (including the Bank) or by the agents, brokers, cardholders
(including the Company or any Authorized Cardholder), or merchants of any such Visa member arising out of the Visa Card product,
including without limitation the Visa Card Account and services provided under this Agreement.
VISA USA and VISA INTERNATIONAL DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE VISA CARD PRODUCT OR
ANY CORE SERVICE OR SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES PROVIDED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH BY VISA OR ITS
CONTRACTORS (INCLUDING THE BANK), BOTH EXPRESS AND IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY AND WARRANTY FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.
24. PRIOR AGREEMENTS; WAIVER. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and supersedes all prior agreements and
understandings, both written and oral, between the Company and the Bank or any of the Bank’s affiliates or any subsidiary of United
Bankshares, Inc. with respect to the subject matter hereof. No waiver by the Bank or any of the Bank’s rights under this Agreement
shall be effective unless in writing signed by an authorized representative of the Bank.
25. ASSIGNMENT; BINDING EFFECT. This Agreement (including any of the Company’s rights or obligations hereunder) may not
be assigned or transferred, by operation of law or otherwise, by the Company without the prior written consent of the Bank. This
Agreement shall be binding upon the representatives and permitted successors and assigns of the Company. No consent is
required for the Bank to assign or otherwise transfer this Agreement or its rights or obligations hereunder.
26. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THE COMPANY EXPRESSLY AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHT IT MAY
HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING OF ANY NATURE RESULTING FROM, ARISING OUT
OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. ANY ACTION TO ENFORCE THIS AGREEMENT MAY, AT THE OPTION OF THE
BANK, BE BROUGHT IN THE STATE OR FEDERAL COURTS LOCATED IN FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA, AND THE
CUSTOMER EXPRESSLY AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY OBJECTION TO PERSONAL JURISDICTION OR VENUE AT
THAT FORUM. THE COMPANY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE FOREGOING WAIVERS ARE KNOWING AND VOLUNTARY.
27. NOTICES. All notices under this Agreement shall be given in the manner and to the address and (if applicable) the telephone
number stated in Paragraph 18. All notices permitted or required by this Agreement shall (unless otherwise specified in this
Agreement) be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if sent by personal delivery, United States mail, e-mail or
other electronic communication, or facsimile, addressed, in the case of notice to the Bank, to the address specified in Paragraph
18 or by e-mail to pcard@bankwithunited.com, and in the case of the Company to the billing address on file with the Bank or to the
e-mail address on file with the Bank, in the case of authorized inquires, or for any notice by the Bank pursuant to Paragraphs 16
and 17, to the Program Coordinator at the address set forth in this Agreement or any attachment thereto; or any address set forth
or referred to above may be changed by the party to receive notice, providing notice is given in writing to the other party in
accordance with these notice provisions.
Purchasing Card Agreement rev 04.2021 50

Section IX, Item C.



28. CURRENCY CONVERSION AND INTERNATIONAL TRANSACTIONS. When you use your United Credit Card at a merchant that
does not accept payment in US dollars, settles in a currency other than US dollars, the transaction amount will be converted into the
corresponding US dollar amount. The currency conversion rate used to determine the transaction amount in US dollars is either a rate
selected by Visa from the range of rates available in wholesale currency markets for the applicable central processing date, which rate
may vary from the rate Visa itself receives, or the government-mandated rate in effect for the applicable central processing date. The
conversion rate in effect on the processing date may differ from the rate in effect on the transaction date or posting date. Visa USA charges 
us an International Service Assessment on all international transactions, regardless of whether there is a currency conversion. As a result, 
we charge you an international transaction fee on international transactions where there is no currency conversion. Please refer to your
Fee Schedule for additional information regarding the amount of the fee. An international transaction is any transaction where the country
of the merchant is located outside of the United States of America.
29. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement and all questions relating to the subject matter hereof shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia or, to the extent controlling, the laws of the United States of America.
30. EFFECTIVENESS. This Agreement is effective upon the first use of any card issued to the Company pursuant to the arrangement
memorialized herein and shall remain in effect until cancelled by either party in the fashion described hereinabove. The signature of the 
Company on an application for establishment of this Account or the provision of a resolution authorizing the establishment of this Account 
shall constitute and be treated as the assent in writing by the Company to the terms of this Agreement. 
31. IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT PROCEDURES FOR OPENING A NEW ACCOUNT. To help the government fight the
funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, Federal law requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify, and record
information that identifies each person who opens an account or requests a loan. What this means for you: When you open an
account or request a loan, we will ask for your name, address, date of birth, and other information that will allow us to identify you.
We may also ask to see your driver’s license or other identifying documents. We may ask our established customers for identification 
and we will use this information to update our files.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has caused this Agreement to be executed as of the Effective Date, by its duly 
authorized officer(s). 

United Bank 
Company Name: (Print or Type) 

By:                    By: 
  (Signature) (Signature) 

Name: Name: 
  (Print or Type)  (Print or Type) 

Title: Title: 
(Print or Type) (Print or Type) 

Purchasing Card Agreement rev 04.2021 

TOWN OF CEREDO

PAUL A BILLUPS

MAYOR

51

Section IX, Item C.

sgable
Highlight

sgable
Highlight



UNITED BANK PURCHASING CARD 
Authorization Agreement for Direct Payments 

Date:  _______________________ 

_______________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Company Name (Please Print) Authorized Employee (Please Print) 

  

United Bank Credit Card Number: ______________________________ 

Draft from : 
Depository Institution: ____________________________________ 
Institution’s Phone #: ____________________________________ 
Routing & Transit Number: ______________________________ 
   Checking     Savings Account Number: ____________________   

I (we) hereby authorize United Bank to initiate debit entries to our corporate 
account(s) at the depository institution indicated above for payment to the above-
referenced Purchasing Card beginning ____/____/________.  The payment will be 
posted on the due date.           MM/DD/YYYY 

Payment Option: 

        The previous statement balance amount that is due each month less any credits 
issued. 

This authorization is to remain in full force and effect until United Bank has received written 
notification from authorized personnel of its termination in such time and in such manner as to 
afford United Bank and the depository institution a reasonable opportunity to act on it. 

NOTE:  ALL DEBIT AUTHORIZATIONS MUST PROVIDE THAT THE RECEIVER MAY 
REVOKE THE AUTHORIZATION ONLY BY NOTIFYING THE ORIGINATOR IN THE 
MANNER SPECIFIED IN THE AUTHORIZATION. 

__________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 2nd Authorized Signature (if applicable) 

TOWN OF CEREDO

 

1/18/2024

52

Section IX, Item C.


	Top
	Section IV, Item A.	Minutes from Regular Meeting of January 8, 2024
	Minutes January 2024

	Section V, Item A.	Account Balances
	TREASURER Report - JANUARY 2024

	Section V, Item B.	Approval of Expenditures
	EXPENDITURE REPORT JANUARY 2023

	Section VII, Item D.	Armstrong Utilities Franchise Agreement Renewal
	ArmstrongFranchiseeAgreement_Proposed
	ArmstrongFranchiseeAgreement_Current

	Section VIII, Item A.	Building Code Revision - Second Reading
	Ceredo Building Code

	Section IX, Item A.	Ordinance to Create Planning Commission
	Planning Commission

	Section IX, Item B.	Police Request - Motorcycle Radar Bracket
	Police Quote

	Section IX, Item C.	Proposal to switch to United Bank PCard Program
	Non-Profit-Visa-Purchasing-Card-Applciation TOWN OF CEREDO

	Bottom


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000500044004600206587686353ef901a8fc7684c976262535370673a548c002000700072006f006f00660065007200208fdb884c9ad88d2891cf62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef653ef5728684c9762537088686a5f548c002000700072006f006f00660065007200204e0a73725f979ad854c18cea7684521753706548679c300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020b370c2a4d06cd0d10020d504b9b0d1300020bc0f0020ad50c815ae30c5d0c11c0020ace0d488c9c8b85c0020c778c1c4d560002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken voor kwaliteitsafdrukken op desktopprinters en proofers. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents for quality printing on desktop printers and proofers.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /NA
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure true
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000500044004600206587686353ef901a8fc7684c976262535370673a548c002000700072006f006f00660065007200208fdb884c9ad88d2891cf62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef653ef5728684c9762537088686a5f548c002000700072006f006f00660065007200204e0a73725f979ad854c18cea7684521753706548679c300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020b370c2a4d06cd0d10020d504b9b0d1300020bc0f0020ad50c815ae30c5d0c11c0020ace0d488c9c8b85c0020c778c1c4d560002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken voor kwaliteitsafdrukken op desktopprinters en proofers. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents for quality printing on desktop printers and proofers.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /NA
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure true
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


